
September 18, 2017 

MEETING OF THE MONTGOMERY COUN1Y BOARD OF ELECTIONS 
18753-210 North Frederick Avenue, Gaithersburg, Maryland 

In Attendance: 

Board Members: 

Jim Shalleck, President 
Nahid Khozeimeh, Vice President 
David Naimon 
Alexander Vincent 
Jacqueline Phillips 

Board Attorney: 

Kevin Karpinski 

Staff: 

Margaret Jurgensen, Election Director 
Alysoun McLaughlin, Deputy Director 
Lisa Merino, Office Services Coordinator 
Marjorie Roher, Management and Budget Specialist III 
Janet Ross, Information Technology Manager 
Christine Rzeszut, Operations Manager 
Jessica White, Voter Services Manager 
Leslie Woods, Election Judge Coordinator 
Gilberto Zelaya, Outreach Coordinator 

Guests: 

Alan Banov 
Nancy Farrar 
Holly Joseph 
Richard Jurgena 
Senator Cheryl Kagan 
Dolly Kildee 
Karen Rhodes 
Barbara Sanders 
Michael Subin 
Helen Vallone 

Audio of the meeting may be found at the link below: 

https://voutu.be/ ZHMk-Xcjgl 

I 

https://youtu.be/_ZHMk-XcjgI


Co�vene the _Board Meeting and Declare a Quorum Present 
' 

' 

Mr. Shalleck called the Board meeting to order and declared a quorum present at 2:30 p.m. 

Mr. Shalleck announced that Ms. Keeffe is unable to attend the Board meeting today due to 
a family matter out of the state. 

Approval of the July 17, 2017, Board Meeting Minutes 

The Board members proposed edits and changes to minutes. The Board members agreed 
to approve the edits provided and discussed. 

Mrs. Khozeimeh moved to accept the July 17, 2017, Board meeting minutes as 
amended. The motion was seconded by Mr. Naiman and passed unanimously. 

Additions/Changes to the Agenda 

Mr. Shalleck stated that an Executive Session would be held immediately after the Board 
meeting to discuss a personnel matter. Mr. Naiman noted that he may have a new business item 
to discuss. 

Public Comments 

Richard Jurgena, Chairman of the Montgomery County Republican Central Committee, 
requested to address the Board. Mr. Jurgena requested that the Board of Elections provide a copy 
of the additions, deletions and/or changes made to the voter rolls that are submitted to the State 
Board of Elections every month. He noted that the Republican Central Committee 
receives/purchases a copy of the updated rolls every month and they are looking to only receive 
any additions, deletions, or changes to the rolls to compare to their file. Ms. Phillips inquired how 
long it takes for the State Board to acknowledge the updated information; Ms. Jurgensen 
responded that the acknowledgement is received instantly. She added the Board of Elections 
(BOE) receives the data in several ways, such as electronically from the MVA, and BOE does not 
possess the ability to provide a report listing changes or deletions of each voter. Ms. Jurgensen 
suggested that political parties seek third party support in performing data analysis or bring the 
inquiry to the State Board of Elections. Voter Services Manager Jessica White agreed with Ms. 
Jurgensen and noted that a statistical report can be run but specific names or voter IDs are not 
available on that report. Ms. McLaughlin noted that the voter registration database is a State 
database and BOE only has user privileges. As end users, staff is making discrete changes and 
those changes are done live in the record. 

Mr. Naimon asked whether the Board holds onto original copies of the data and whether 
there are any legal impediments to releasing that information. Ms. White replied that 
documentation is scanned or electronically processed into the record. Mr. Naiman asked how 
burdensome it would be to keep a paper record of each update. Ms. Jurgensen responded that 
she was not in a position to be able to answer the question at that time. Mr. Shalleck requested 

2 



that Ms. Jurgensen contact the State Board of Elections to see what can be done to the software 
to produce the report. 

Mr. Jurgena stated that he understands that the request cannot be accomplished locally 
and is requesting that the Montgomery County Board of Elections request modification to the State 
Board of Elections . The Board thanked Mr. Jurgena. 

Senator Cheryl Kagan requested to address the Board in advance. Senator Kagan noted 
that an Election Security hearing was held in Annapolis and that it is an issue that will continue to 
be monitored. 

Concerning early voting sites, Senator Kagan stated that she was also speaking on behalf 
of her colleagues Senator Feldman, Senator King, Senator Smith, and Senator Madalena about a 
concern with the separation of Church and State and using any faith institution as an Early Voting 
site. She noted that other sites are available in the Wheaton area, such as the Holiday Park Senior 
Center, the Margaret Schweinhaut Senior Center or Wheaton Plaza. 

Senator Kagan stated that she will be introducing several legislative bills regarding election 
laws. She stated that two bills will be introduced, a local bill and a statewide bill, regarding 
Ranked Choice Voting. Ms. Phillips inquired what Senator Kagan's feelings were with having 
names randomly appear on a ballot/screen rather than alphabetically. Senator Kagan responded 
that the option had not been proposed and she is not aware of any other State that uses that 
method; however, she is happy to hear further thoughts on it. 

Senator Kagan stated that a legislative bill will be introduced regarding election observers. 
She noted that there is some desire by observers to be able to obtain clearance from the state 
rather than going to every county. She discussed making a distinction between the needs of 
international observers and academic observers. 

Senator Kagan stated that a legislative bill will be introduced regarding those voters that 
are registered as unaffiliated. The bill would provide them the opportunity to cast a primary ballot 
by choosing to affiliate with a party instead of just voting for the School Board. It would not allow 
voters to switch parties but only to affiliate with a party. She stated that a Delegate has reached 
out to her who will be introducing it on the House side. Mr. Vincent stated that if the bill passed, 
he would be concerned that Same Day Voter Registration would be overwhelmed with an influx of 
voters. The Board members briefly discussed the potential bills further. 

Senator Kagan stated she is available to discuss any of the items further off line. 

Election Director Status Report (Incorporated as Attachment A) 

Ms. Jurgensen reported that public notice of the Board meeting was posted on September 
8, 2017, and public notification was posted on September 13, 2017. 

3 






























































